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alth and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
nents with Bridge House Shelter, 260 Highland Street, Plymouth, NH
38-B001), to provide Emergency Solutions and State Grant-In-Aid
, in an amount not to exceed $185,074. This amount represents an
roactive to January 1, 2013 upon Governor and Council approval,
d $155,012, retroactive to July 1, 2013 upon Governor and Council

REQUESTED ACTION

> available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2014 and
ntinued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with the
n the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract
vernor and Executive Council.

ND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HOUSING, HOUSING — SHELTER PROGRAM

Class/Object Class Title

927 102-500731 Contracts for program services  $30,062.00

ND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Fiscal Year Appropriation Class/Object Class Title

2014 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731 Contracts for program services $77,506.00

2015 05-95-42-423010-7928 102-500731 Contracts for program services $77,506.00
Total $155,012.00

This request is retroactive beca
administrative burden for the con

Council has resulted in certain dé

encompasses two separate cont

EXPLANATION

use the Department efforts to consolidate contracts to reduce the
tractors as well as reduce the number of submissions to governor and
2lays in the department completing the contract package. This request
racts with the same vendor. The contracts are separated to address

focus areas and the need to differentiate between funding streams.
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Emergency Solutions Grant

These agreements allocate a partion of the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program
funds provided to New Hampshire by the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. The vendors shall utilize the McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant and matching funds
pursuant to their agreements for operations activities, including shelter operations costs such as rent,
utilities, insurance and supplies. Such activities help negate instance where households are
threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated that these contractors will serve
approximately 4,200 individuals statewide.

The Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services has administered this program for 25 previous rounds
of federal funding.

A Request for Proposal was issued at the annual New Hampshire Homeless Provider and Homeless
Education Liaison Conference orr October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was also posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criteria for selection included: proposal includes
all elements and is assembled as required; program design and need for project; use of
outcome/performance measures and outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of
resources; local service delivery area coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach;
accurate and timely utilization of Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and
credentials; compliance with rules, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity; and
increase in prevention/intervention or essential services. Each applying organization was required to
submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be
evaluated independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through McKinney,
from 14 agencies, were evaluated and scored.  Since McKinney funds constitute a small portion of
each organization’s overall budget, proposals that qualified for McKinney funds were evaluated and
scored with all other proposals. | All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50 required for
funding.

State Grant-In-Aid
The Vendor will utilize State of New Hampshire Emergency Shelter Program Grant-In-Aid in
combination with matching funds pursuant to this Agreement for Essential Services, such as
assistance in finding permanent housing, employments counseling, substance abuse counseling,
assistance in accessing other community services, and staff salaries and benefits. Such activities help
negate instances where househalds are threatened by immediate homelessness.

The total bed nights provided by shelters in NH were:

SFY 2011 - 252,589
SFY 2012 - 294,138
Total - 546,727

In SFY 2012, each evening, state-funded emergency shelters provided a warm place to sleep for
approximately 839 people who were without a home. Families comprised 31% of those served.

Similar to the Emergency Solutions Grant Request for Proposal, this Request for Proposal was also
issued at the annual New Hampshire Homeless Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference
on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and
Human Services’ website.
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Criteria for selection was the same as that for Emergency Solutions Grant funding. As a result of this

RFP, fifty (50) separate proposal

s could be funded through State Grant-In-Aid, from thirty-five (35)

organizations were evaluated and scored. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required

for funding.

The Bureau assures contract compliance and provider performance through the following:

1) Annual compliance reviews 3

with administrative rules and con

re performed, including the collection of data relating to compliance
tractual agreements;

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including various

demographic information reports

3) All providers funded for shelte
timely and accurate data entry
unless they are required by law

as well as income and expense reports, including match dollars; and

r, transitional housing, or outreach services will be required to maintain
pn the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
to use an alternate data collection. The NH Homeless Management

Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through these contracts.

Should the Governor and Exg
prevention resources for people
will be an increase in demand st
housing and resources will resor
or will attempt to travel to shelten

zcutive Council not approve this Request, shelter and homeless
who are homeless may not be available in their community, and there
atewide placed upon local welfare authorities. People who are without
t to seeking local shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in,
s in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless

people will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education

and treatment. Numerous jobs
have to close their doors or drast

Area served. Statewide, especi
Source of funds:

State Grant in Aid- 100% Geners
Emergency Solutions Grant Fung

would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agencies would
ically reduce staff.

ally Grafton County

3| Funds, $155,012
ls —~ 100% Federal Funds, $30,062

Respectfully

Approved by:

icholas A. Toumpa
Commissioner

The Department of Heal
in providing opp

th and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
ortunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




Bridge House Shelter (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,062
Sub-total $30,062

Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $34,170
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $13,832
Sub-total $13,832

The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $35,964
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council @

n Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,105
Sub-total $18,105

Greater Nashua Int

erfaith Hospitality Network, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)
d/b/a Anne-Marie House

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,246
Sub-total $9,246




1
H#rbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)

L State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $41,534
Sub-total $41,534
My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $36,560
Sub-total $36,560

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $42 557
Sub-total $42,557

New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $41,319
Sub-total $41,319

The Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $39,351
Sub-total $39,351

The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $33,248
Sub-total $33,248

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $61,275
Sub-total $61,275




Tri«County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $32,512
Sub-total $32,512
| Total $469,735 |




05-95-42-423010-7928 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, EMERGENCY SHELTERS
(100% General Funds)

United Ways of New Hampshire, 211 NH (Vendor# 202684-B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $44,973
102-500734 Contracts f& Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $54,514
Sub-total $99,487
AIDS Response Seacoast (Vendor# 166647 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $20,557
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $20,557
Sub-total $41,114
Bridge House Shelter (Vendor# 165288 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $77,506
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $77,506
Sub-total $155,012
Child and Family Services (Vendor# 177166 - B002)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $143,226
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $143,226
Sub-total $286,452
Cross Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts far Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $144,425
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $144,425
Sub-total $288,850

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & H

Financial Detail
Page 1 of 5
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First Congregational Cﬂlmch - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $8,038
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $8,038
Sub-total $16,076
The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $172,763
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $172,763
Sub-total $345,526

Greater Nashua Council on A

Icoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $53,486
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $53,486
Sub-total $106,972

Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)

d/b/a Anne-Marie House

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $15,674
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $15,674
Sub-total $31,348

Headrest Inc. (Vendor# 175226 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $56,532
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $56,532
Sub-total $113,064

Helping Hands Outreach Center (Vendor# 174226 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $51,384
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $51,384
Sub-total $102,768

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & H
Financial Detail
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Laconia Area Cdmmunity Land Trust (Vendor# 156571 - B001)

‘ State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $41,157
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $41,157
Sub-total $82,314

Marguerite's Place, Inc (Vendor# 157465-B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $38,933
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $38,933
Sub-total $77,866

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program (Vendor# 157934 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $63,212
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $63,212
Sub-total $126,424

My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $50,630
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $50,630
Sub-total $101,260

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $73,388
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $73,388
Sub-total $146,776

New Generation, Inc (Vendor# 177295 - B002)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $61,671
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $61,671
Sub-total $123,342

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & Housing Serv
Financial Detail
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New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $161,767
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $161,767
Sub-total $323,534

New Hampshire Coalition Ag;

ainst Domestic and Sexual Violence (Vendor# 155510 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $277,373
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $277,373
Sub-total $554,746
New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Vendor# 154648 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $51,077
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $51,077
Sub-total $102,154
he Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $61,840
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $61,840
Sub-total $123,680
The Salvation Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $30,835
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $30,835
Sub-total $61,670
The Samaritans (Vendor# 204660-B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $64,960
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $64,960
Sub-total $129,920

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & H

Financial Detail
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St. John Neuma

nn Outreach Program (Vendor# 155674 - B002)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $15,418
102-500734 Contracts foL' Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $15,418
Sub-total $30,836
Veteran Homestead Inc (Vendor# 162068 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2014 $9,883
102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 42307020 2015 $9,883
Sub-total $19,766
Total $3,590,957

Attachment- SGIA Bur of Homeless & H

Financial Detail
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A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request
for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’
website.

Evaluation| HMIS | Total

Shelter Programs Score | Utilization | Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and |Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia {Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5

reater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont 80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5

ri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (13) separate proposals that could be funded through Stewart B
McKinney (McKinney), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since
McKinney funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget,
proposals that qualified for McKinney funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized into
twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and scores. The
review committee teams included the following individuals:

e Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services
Employee - Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community
Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery Areas of Concord and
Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State Continuum of Care




Michael Bilson, BA, Program Planner I, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs,
Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division
ed Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

John Capuco, Psy.
of Community Bas
Services

Christopher Cullin
Division of Public }

an, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Sharon Drake, BS, Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator, American
mmittee

Margaret Fogarty,
Friends Service Co

Ellen Fries, BA, Concord Coalition to End Homelessness

Sherry Gould, Director, Wijokadoak, Inc
Bill Guinther, BA, Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority (NHHFA)

Janet Horne, Busin
of Community Bas
Services

ess Systems Analyst I, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division
ed Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

David Keller, Former Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit,
Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Janine A Lesser, BS
Division of Family

Sandra Matheson, Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
Attorney General's Office

William McGonagle, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections

Niki Miller, MS, Senior Project Associate at Advocates for Human Potential,
formerly Administrator of Women Offenders for NH Department of Corrections

Karen Orsini, MSN
Health, Division of|
and Human Servic

Linda J Parker, BS,
Care Services, NH

, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health

Sh]

CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community Based

Department of Health and Human Services




McKinney funds were awsa
shelter programs to meet f

Bernadette Pelczar

BA, MSW, Social Worker

Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH

Department of Hea

lth and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of

Developmental Ser

vices, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug and
Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department
of Health and Human Services

Marianne Savarese,

Program

Barbara Thorngren
New Hampshire, L

BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the Homeless

M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for PeaceWorks
LC

Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH Department

of Corrections

Sally Varney, BA, I
Community Based
Services

Dave Villiotti, MS,

Donna Walker, BB/
Health, Division of
and Human Servic

Kathleen Walton, N
Director, Town of 9

’rogram Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home

A MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of Behavioral
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
pg

[asters in Human Service Administration, Human Service
balem

irded to the Operations budgets of emergency homeless
ederal requirements for the utilization of these funds. In

order to assure that McKinney funds were available to all programs providing

emergency shelter, the foll

For any program v
Operations budget

owing formula was utilized:

vith an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
line was supported through McKinney dollars; and




¢ For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of the
Operations budget line was supported through McKinney dollars.




A Request for Pro-posal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless Provider and
Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was

also posted on the Departm

ent of Health and Human Services’ website.

Shelter Programs Evaluation Score| HMIS Utilization | Total Score
Laconia Area Community 98 9.8 107.8
Front Door Agency 95 10 105
Families in Transition - Cong¢ord 92.5 10 102.5
Helping Hands Outreach Ministries 92 8.6 100.6
Families in Transition - Famjly Place/Amherst 90.5 10 100.5
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Families in Transition - Lowell St 89.5 10 99.5
Families in Transition - Family Place/Spruce St 89.5 10 99.5
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 88 10 98
The Way Home 88.5 9.4 97.9
Families in Transition - Family Willows/Millyard 11 88 9.2 97.2
Families in Transition - Manchester Emergency 86.5 10 96.5
Marguerite's Place, Inc 86.5 10 96.5
Harbor Homes Inc  86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hpspitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence 83 8 91
Samaritans (Mary's Place) 81 9 90
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont 80.5 8.5 89
New Generations, Inc 79 9.6 88.6
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88
Southwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Headrest, Inc 79 4.7 83.7
Veteran Homestead, Inc 75.5 8 83.5
Tri-County Community Actign Program, Inc (Tyler
Blaine) 75.5 7.5 83

Prevention Programs Evaluation Score

AIDS Rpsponse Seacoast 103

Southwestern Community Services 99

The Way Home 99

NH Legal Assistance 98.5

Harbor Homes, Inc 98

St. John Neumann Church Outreach 98

Front Dpor Agency 97

Merrimack Valley Assistance Program 96.5

Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - New Start 96




Due to the quantity of propol
which met and presented th

Strafford County Community Action Committee,

Inc 95
Belknap-Merrimack Community Action Program,

Inc - Prevention 93
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) - Hotel 92.5
NH 211 (United Ways of New Hampshire) -

Hotline 92
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire 91
Southern New Hampshire Services 89
Southern New Hampshire Services (Rockingham

Program) 89
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 71
Veteran Homestead, Inc 61

sals received, the reviewers were organized into twelve (12) teams,
eir final evaluations and scores. The review committee teams

included the following indiviguals:

Natalie Allen, BA, M

BA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services

Employee — Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community Relations

Manager, served or

the Local Service Delivery Areas of Concord and Laconia, and as a

member of the Balance of State Continuum of Care

Michael Bilson, BA,

Program Planner |, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs, Bureau of

Behavioral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of
Health and Human Bervices

John Capuco, Psy. D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Christopher Cullinan, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program, Division of

Public Health, NH D
Sharon Drake, BS,

epartment of Health and Human Services

Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

Margaret Fogarty, MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator, American Friends

Service Committee
Ellen Fries, BA, Cor
Sherry Gould, Direg

Bill Guinther, BA, Pt
(NHHFA)

1cord Coalition to End Homelessness

tor, Wijokadoak, Inc

ogram Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority

Janet Horne, Busingss Systems Analyst |, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division of

Community Based {
David Keller, Formeg

Janine A Lesser, BS
of Family Assistanc

Sandra Matheson, [
General’s Office

William McGonagle

Niki Miller, MS, Sen
Administrator of Wo

Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

r Minister at Concord's First Congregational Church

5, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit, Division
e, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH Attorney

Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections

or Project Associate at Advocates for Human Potential, formerly
men Offenders for NH Department of Corrections




e Karen Orsini, MSN,
Division of Commun
Services

e Linda J Parker, BS,

RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
ity Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community Based Care

Services, NH Deparntment of Health and Human Services

e Bernadette Pelczar,

BA, MSW, Social Worker

e Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Prcgram Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

¢ Myriam Roeder, Adoption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH
Department of Health and Human Services

e Todd Ringelstein, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Divisicn of Developmental
Services, NH Deparntment of Health and Human Services

e Michael Rogers, MHA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and

Human Services
e Marianne Savarese

e Barbara Thorngren,
Hampshire, LLC

BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the Homeless Program

M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for PeaceWorks New

e Kristina Toth, BA, Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH Department of

Corrections

e Sally Varriey, BA, Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of Cemmunity

Based Care Service

s, NH Department of Health and Human Services

e Dave Villiotti, MS, Executive Director, Nashua Children's Home

e Donna Walker, BBA
Division of Commun
Services

, MBA, Business Administrator |V, Bureau of Behavioral Health,
ity Based Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

e Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human Service Director,

Town of Salem

A funding distribution formula for State Grant-In-Aid was designed during March 2013, based on

the most current projections

of State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 funding available at that time.

This total was approximately 4% mcre than the State Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013 total of State

Grant-In-Aid funding. One

reventicn program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, received a score of 61,

which was below the guideline score of 65; therefore, they were only awarded level funding for
their program. One shelter program, Veteran Homestead, Inc, was not funded, especially when

taking into consideration the

placement of the proposal in the rankings of the sheiter program

scores, because the proposgl was for a new shelter request and not a renewal shelter request.




Subject: State Grant-In-Aid Fu\ds Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

The State of V\ch Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
[ 1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Bridge House Shelter 260 Highland Street
Plymouth, NH 03264
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 | Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
(603) 536-7631 05-95}42-423010-7928 June 30, 2015 $155,012.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9197

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ex /s

person whose name is signed in block 1.1

_/
1.13 Acknowledge‘ﬁent State of A/H |, County of (J@AF10A/~

On @’(’@, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
P, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.
1.13.1 Signagnare of Nota Publ;c or Justice of the Peace
\g ) KAREN FREITAS
Notary Public - New Hampshira
| [Seal] My Commission Expires December §, 2017
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
KAREN FRETTAS
ALaT7ARY
1.14  State Agency Sjgmature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
A An A

o

/4§("®( vA-k@

1.16 Ap(ry’ by the N. H@ﬂm nt of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
(1.17 Approval by the Attorney Genegal (Form, Substance and Execution)
By: W@W [ y on /2 AN 200 3
' S ne ¥ He A e
1.18  Approval by the Governor and ]E\:ecutlve Council
By: On: J
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2, EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached

EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein b
(“Services™). ’

y reference

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the

contrary, and subject to the approval of the

Govemor and

Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this

Agreement, and all obligations of the partis

s hereunder, shall

not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Servig

(“Effective Date”).
es prior to the

Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the

Contractor, including without limitation, an

y obligation to pay

the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continiied appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be Jiable for any

payments hereunder in excess of such avail

able appropriated

funds. In the event of a reduction or terminption of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the

right to withhold

payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall

have the right to terminate this Agreement

mmediately upon

giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State

shall not be required to transfer funds from

any other account

to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment,
payment are identified and more particular

and terms of
y described in

EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract

price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset frg

m any amounts

otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts

r omissions of the

Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on

schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition

of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice

ecifying the Event

of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice ¢f termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this

Agreement and ordering that the portion of]

the contract price

which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any

Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALI
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word *
information and things developed or obtain
performance of, or acquired or developed
Agreement, including, but not limited to, a
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, soun|
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawin
graphic representations, computer program
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper:
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has be
the State or purchased with funds provided
under this Agreement, shall be the prope
shall be returned to the State upon demand
termination of this Agreement for any reas
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govern

chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclos
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an e
this Agreement for any reason other than th
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the

ursue any of its

/

ta” shall mean all

d during the

reason of, this
studies, reports,
recordings, video

s, analyses,

, computer

, and documents,

received from
for that purpose
of the State, and
I upon
n.
by N.H. RSA
re of data requires

rly termination of
e completion of the
Contracting

Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination ReportT) describing in

detail all Services performed, and the contr,
and including the date of termination. The {
matter, content, and number of copies of th

act price earned, to
form, subject
e Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of]
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,

certifies and warrants that the Contractor is|in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject|to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person| proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State|shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Defaulf. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto|to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is/binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department
State Grant In Aid Program

of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

State Grant In Aid Progra

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:
1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

the program narrative
operations, preventio
Housing Services, Di
Human Services, her
The Contractor agree
Court or federal or st
has the right, followin
expenditure requirem
compliance therewith.
The Contractor shall
to the funding of the
records shall be main
funding from such pu
The Contractor shall
describing the numbe
required to provide th
required at the discret
compliance with the fq

1.4.2. The average |
1.4.3. 80% of Vetera
programs lead
move onto per
All programs under th
permanent programs
Hampshire Homeless
contract must be fami
required for data entry
HMIS policy can be a¢
hmis.org.
Failure to submit the 3
delay or withholding o

1.4.1. 60% of progra{

confirmed by the State.

budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,
, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and
ision of Community Based Care Services, Department of Health and
after referred to as the State.
that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
e court orders may impact on the Services described herein, the State
consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and
nts for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

ursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
ervices, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
ained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
lic sources of funds.

rovide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff
service, as may be required by the State. Monthly reports may be

on of the State. Reports shall include, but are not limited to, details of
llowing key program outcomes:

participants will exit the program to permanent housing.

ngth of stay in this program will be reduced by 10%.

s will receive and engage in all existing services and have access to

ng to independent permanent housing, and of the 80% engaged, 90% will
manent housing.

s contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

are required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this

iar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is

, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH
ccessed electronically through the following website: http://www.nh-

bove reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are

2. SERVICES:
The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

2.1. New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-in-Aid Program RSA 126-A:25, 126-A:27, 126-

A:28 and 126-A:29 as well as He-M 314

2.2. Contractor shall use the New Hampshire Emergency Shelter State Grant-In-Aid funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness.
Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,
and staff salaries and benefits.

Operations Activities, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,
and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program

Exhibit B

D AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

State Grant In Aid Progra
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — State Grant In
Aid Program.

This contract is funded 100% by the New Hampshire General Fund as follows:
NH General Funds:

SFY14 not to exceed $77,506.00
SFY15 not to exceed $77,506.00

Federal Funds: Not Applicable

1. PROGRESS REPORTS:
Semi-annual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which identify the status of the
Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining services prior to the Completion Date
and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the
month following the end of each six month period on forms supplied by the State.

2. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT OF PROJECT COSTS; REVIEW BY THE STATE

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Services, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State |agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed and
for the specific time period specified above.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Project Costs at the conclusion of
each monthly period ar any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the funds
provided exceed the amounts specified above.

2.4. Review by the State, Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Rroject Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.

3. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS:
No more than 10% of funds in each budget line can be transferred between line items as appears on
the budget page without the prior written authorization from the State. Any expenditures which
exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial responsibility of the Contractor. However,
such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer of other funds where such transfer is
permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing
the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur
additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent years without prior written authorization
from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
Page 10f 2
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New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Program
Exhibit B
State Grant In Aid Program Budget detail
EXPENSE BUDGET for SFY14 and SFY15:
EXPENSE ITEM State GIA Funds Match
Prevention/Intervention N/A N/A
Rent with eviction notice, martgage with 0 0
foreclosure notice, utilities with disconnect
notice, and other activities to prevent
homelessness
Essential Services $155,012.00 $155,012.00
Assistance in finding permanent housing, |0 0
employment counseling, substance abuse
counseling, assistance in acgessing other
community services and staff salaries and
benefits
Operations N/A N/A
Shelter operational costs such as rent, 0 0
utilities, insurance, supplies and taxes
TOTALS $155,012.00 $155,012.00
TOTAL GlA+Match $310,024.00
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials
Page 2 of 2 Date




New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Special Provisions

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows: .

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continbied appropnation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement|and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in|block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this|Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

3. Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

4. Add the following to Paragraph 6.;
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application

6.4.2. that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

Application;

6.4.3. that no mare than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;

6.4.4. that, except as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:

6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed
on the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials ___( E?Li
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6.4.4.2.

6.4.4.3.

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

conduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

5. Add the following to Parag

7.4.

7.5.

6. Add the following to Parag

8.3.

8.4.

CA/DHHS/100213

6.444. b

wi
that the C
available t
Contractor

6.4.5.

inconsistent with HUD's environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or

h the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

ntractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the

ntends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to

reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or

national or

gin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish

additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

6.4.6.

that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law

and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in

accordance
and Urban
6.4.7.

with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing

Development;.
that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity

requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

6.4.8.
42U.8.C. 4

that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,

332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers

Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

6.4.9.

that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint

Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

It is understood and
Agreement, the Co
consultant, officer, o

raph 7.:

agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this
ntractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
r elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State

that receives Supportive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
or responsibilities with respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,

subcontract or agre
herself or those with
one year thereafter.

ement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or

whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for

The Contractor shalLL not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors

or subcontractors d

ring any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility

status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

The State may deo
rehabilitation grant i
are less than the ap
The State may de
acquisition/rehabilita
accordance with the
time thereafter.

raph 8.:

bligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
f the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
proved grant.

2obligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed

tion or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.
For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Paragraph 9.:

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor’'s normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this

Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all

persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an

affiliate of, the entity|identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

9.56.2. Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisjtions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to|the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year

retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or

the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the

Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller

General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The

Page 30of 6
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Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptrolier General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:
10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of

the State, 30 days gafter giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2. In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to|the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The CQontractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT
20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for

the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. Inthe event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or -
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will fadilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of|the structure and the operation of the Project.

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covengnt running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project|is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following injtial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, hejrs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.4.1
204.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

20.4.5.

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the|residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor's financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and
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204.7.

CA/DHHS/100213

the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Hstimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it/is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes
prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement
The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-128, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”
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STANDARD EXHIBIT D

GARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Sec
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug+
701 et seq.), and further agrees
1.12 of the General Provisions e

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANT

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCA

tion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and

xecute the following Certification:

EES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
ION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required

y the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free

Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. [100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and |published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification| by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds |for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

H Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

pd

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possessjon or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace

and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

Contractor Initials:_/ ;’42

Date; @42‘942 Z

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009
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irement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the|identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

(1 Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g9) Making a good faith leffort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

280 AHlerecand ST PLYmenTrm SN 0:5.:.@7/

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

)

ZLFomT s /13 To. G K30 JuS

(Contractor Name) Peridd Cdvered by this Certificatign)

e TUImay)) A 2ec SIE iz

(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

—
N alcvzrA 2l e /3
(Contractor Representative/Signature (Date) 7 7
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
ERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section| 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covergd):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under [Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under itle IV

Contract Period: through

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attémpting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal |contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an|employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative jagreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

(3) The undersigned shall require| that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission pf this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

iéontractor RepresenZtive Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

= SHELFT R 24 e/
(Contractor Name) (Date) VA4
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:_¢ EZE

Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying
January 2009 Date:‘%éz_
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STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

ANI

OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Executive Office of the Presid

ent, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s

representative, as identified in
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIF

Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

ICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is

providing the certif|
2. The inability of a p

cation set out below.

erson to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result

in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or

explanation will be
Services’ (DHHS)
the prospective pri
such person from

3. The certification i
placed when DHH
prospective prima
other remedies av|

for cause or default.

4. The prospective

considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human

determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
mary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
articipation in this transaction.

this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
ilable to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction

rimary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS

agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant learns | that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatians Contractor Initials: (: zf

Standard Exhibit F —

January 2009

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
Date: %ﬂ; /L E
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The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

A participant in covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained |in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaclion knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1M

(2)

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and

its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification on destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (I)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactjons (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defauilt.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such| prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).
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NSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its

principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,

or volunt

rily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal

department or agency.

(b) where the

prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,

such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower
will include this clause
Voluntary Exclusion -
covered transactions a

i— -

(Contractor Representative Signat

tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
nd in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Dir

ure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

B i Hpuse Skt Tl L [ll)/2
(Contractor Narfie) (Date) /s /7
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partment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract} the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

-

(Contractor Representative Signature)

V=YY Nb(ésg_ﬁd,&@

SE /1 /8Y-F-Y5) ﬁfz. ﬂlf—

(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

(Contractor Name)
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STANDARD EXHIBIT H

REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - E
(Act), requires that smoking n
contracted for by an entity and
or library services to children u
directly or through State or loc
law does not apply to childre
Medicare or Medicaid funds, arn
to comply with the provisions @
$1000 per day and/or the impos

The Contractor identified in Seg
representative as identified in
certification:
1. By signing and submitting
with all applicable provision

(Contractor Representafive Signature)

HNouse

nvironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994

ot be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or

used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
nder the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either

al governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The

n's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
d portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
f the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to

sition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

stion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
s of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

-4
(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

12— =

(Contractor Name)
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Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
NCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

USINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identiffed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insura

nce Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the

Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business

Associate” shall mean the Con

tractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or

have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the

State of New Hampshire, Depa

rtment of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have tl
13400.

b. “Business Associate” I
Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has
Federal Regulations.

he same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

nas the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

f.  “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, P

the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
art 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law

104-191 and the Staj
Information, 45 CFR P

i. “Individual” shall have
and shall include a per.
Section 164.501(g).

£13

J- “Privacy Rule” shall
Information at 45 CF]

ndards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
arts 160, 162 and 164,

> the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
son who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
R Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business A
September 2009
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business ﬂsociate Agreement
September 2009
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k.

“Protected Health Infi

é

rmation” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

Page 2 of

information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

“Secretary ” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall

mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected ]

by a technology stan

ealth Information” means protected health information that is not secured
ard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or

indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - Al
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 1

Use and Disclosure of

I terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
60, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Protected Health Information.

Business Associate s

Il not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information

(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
II. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (1) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an| opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects|to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Contractor Initials: 4%

Date: 44% / éé
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

If the Covered Entity
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otifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound

by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such

additional restrictions
shall abide by any addi

nd shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and

tional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure

of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident

involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set

forth in, the HITECH

Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and

records relating to the
Business Associate on
Covered Entity’s comp

use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
liance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as

provided under Sectio
third party beneficiar)
intended business asso
of enforcement and in
standard provision #1
health information.

Within five (5) busin
Associate shall make

n (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
y of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
ciates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
1demnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
8 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected

ess days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,

agreements, policies

d procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered

Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) busi

ss days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR

Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) busi
amendment of PHI or

ess days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the

Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and

incorporate any such a
Section 164.526.

September 2009
Page 30of 6

mendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

Contractor Initials: ( ‘ / g’
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such

disclosures as would b,
an accounting of disclo

Within ten (10) businey
an accounting of disclg

e required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
sures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

3s days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
ssures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity

such information as Cgvered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any indivi

dual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from

the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security

Rule, the Business Ass

ociate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such

law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) busin
Associate shall return
created or received by

ess days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not

retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the

disposition of the PHI
continue to extend the

has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and

disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of

permission provided tg

Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by

Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall
disclosure of PHI that

promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the

extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

September 2009
Page 4 of 6
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Termination for Caus

—

Page 95
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In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of

the Business Associate
immediately terminate
the alleged breach with

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
in a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines

that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered
amend the Agreement,

Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the

changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

Data Ownership. The

Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any ter
or circumstance is held
can be given effect wit
this Exhibit I are declar

Survival. Provisions
destruction of PHI, exts
indemnification provisi
termination of the Agre

m or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
] invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
hout the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
ed severable.

in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, returm or
ensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
ons of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
ement.

Contractor Initials: é z:é
Date: ZQ/ 4/4/ / é Z
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the|parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

N H DHHS

The State Agency Name

ey 2N

5@/
‘ ame of the Contractor

Signamr@%ﬁz‘gd Reprefentative

/IA) Ann (popes

Signature of Authorized Representative

Ly 7245 807

Name of Authorized Representati

A:S—C eZs), A:eﬂ-—ﬂ

Name of Authorized Representative

‘m[ AT f — 4 -~

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

e /4// P

Date

/;/l?//g
/t/ 777

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

September 2009
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NH|Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to execulive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive|of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor|s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

— .

& - 2, -
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
K104 E L SHserER /0 Liis 0
(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: (742

Date: /o //¢ /17
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As the Contractor identified in
below listed questions are true

1. The DUNS number for your

2. In your business or organizg
receive (1) 80 percent or more

grants, sub-grants, and/or coop
from U.S. federal contracts, sul

/o

Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
and accurate.

o2l 70 B =

tion’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
erative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
pcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

entity is:

YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access
or organization through periodi
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 789

NO
If the ansy

4. The names and compensatio
organization are as follows:

Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
c reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

YES
f the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

wer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

n of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

Amount: __
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

Amount:

Contractor initials: 4%

Date: /2 [/b | /2
Page # 6f Page #




State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that The Bridge House, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
February 24, 2004. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5" day of June A.D. 2013

ey Gkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




I, JEFFREY M. BROWN, do hereby certify that:

1. Iam aduly elected PRESIDENT of THE BRIDGE HQUSE, INC. (The Corporation)

1. The following are true copies of resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation

duly held on OCTOBER 16, 2013

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through

its Department of Health and Human Services Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless Housing Services
concerning the following Matter: US Department of Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions Grant
Funds.

RESOLVED: That CATHE BENTWOOD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR is hereby authorized on behalf of
this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and all documents,|agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

2. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect
as of October 16, 2013.

3. CATHERINE BENTWOOD s the duly authorized EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR of the Corporation.

PRESIDENT

The foregoing instrument was agknowledged before me this 26th day of November, 2013, by JEFFREY M.

BROWN.
(NOTARY SEAL) %Qlﬁ&&%
otary Public / Justice-e
o Deborah Dufty
Cominission Explres: ——wNotatyﬁubhcA—
New Hampshire
My Cofnmission Expires 2:8-2015
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- ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o/16r20ts

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER QF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR|NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER j&?a Pat Mack
E & S Insurance Services LLC PHONE (603)293-2791 EAX ok (603)293-7108
21 Meadowbrook Lane _Aii‘nlﬁs:pat@olinsurance.con
P O Box 7425 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Gilford NH 03247-7425 iNsurer A :‘Markel
INSURED wsurer 8 :‘Markel Insurance Co
The Bridge House, Inc. INSURER C :
260 Highland Street INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Plymouth NH 03264 INSURER f :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER2013 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LR TYPE OF INSURANCE e PoucY wmsER s | dab Ay Luars
GENERAL LIABIITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY L Mﬂﬂ $ 100,000
A | cLams mae [ % ] ocour 50255266570~8 7/1/2013  [7/1/2018 | yEDEXP Any onepersony | § 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 8 1,000,000
- GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPJOP AGG | § 1,000,000
X | poLicy '7597 LoC s
OMOB COMDBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUT LE LABILITY a accident) s 1,000,000
A X | any auTo BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED 100255266571-9 7/1/2013 [1/1/2014 | poDILY INJURY (Per accidert)| §
1 NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accidert) i
Medical payments $ 5,000
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
peo | | RETENTION$
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION I WCSTATU. T [om
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 8 ER
A proescrommamERCecuve (1 cLescaccoew s 100,000
(Mandatory in NH) ’ MIC0037234-02 p/10/2013 B/10/2014 | g pgeaSE- EA EMPLOYEY § 100,000
Ifyes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A |Abuse or Molestation 50255266570-8 7/1/2013 7/1/2014 | occumencelAggregate $1,000,000
A |Professional 50255266570-8 7/1/2013  17/1/2014 | Each Adt 1,000,000 Agg 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Re: Funding

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ANCE PROVISIONS.
State of NH, Dept of Health & Human Serv ACCORDANCE WITH THE PoLICY

::i:au :rfmgogzéz:: & Housing AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Pat Mack/PAT Pﬂ’t——m MoK

ACORD 25 (2010105) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
INSO28 201005 m The ANNRN nama and tnan ara ranictarad marke nf ACNRN
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ROWLEY & ASSQCIATES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

6A HILLS AVENUE
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 0330

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX #(603)226-3532 MBMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Bridge House, Inc (a non-
profit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the year then cnded. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Organization's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2011 were audited
by other auditors whose report dated July 2, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements,

We conducted our audit in accordatlce with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting|the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles uscd and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Bridge House, Inc as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Foly < i, P

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, Ncw Hampshire
February 28, 2013
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses
' TOT

FIXED ASSETS

Building and improvements

Furnishings and equipment
Total Fixed Asscts

Less accumulated depreciat

LIABILITIES AND NET ASS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll expenses
Accrued compensated abse

Deferred revenue
TOTAL C

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net a

TOTAL LIABILIT

See Independent 4

AL CURRENT ASSETS

>

ion

TOTAL ASSETS

SETS

Nneces

URRENT LIABILITIES

ssets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

[ES AND NET ASSETS

2-

2012 2011
$ 495849 § 470,494
115,162 110,303
10 420
611,021 581,217
833,680 833,680
39,912 37,613
873,592 871,293
(184,679) (153,250)
688,913 718,043
$ 1,299,934 $ 1,299,260
$ 9159 $ . 3,138
4,142 1,790
3,286 4,823
104,562 -
121,149 9,751
478,785 589,509
700,000 700,000
1,178,785 1,289,509
$ 1,299,934 $ 1,299,260

Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Tor The Year Ended June 30, 2012

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and federal contracts
Other Grants
Contributions ~ Cash
Fundraisers
Fees
Interst

TOTAL SUPPORT ANI

EXPENSES
Program Services
Management and general

Fundraising

(Decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment

Net assets, end of year

D REVENUE

TEMPORARILY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
$ 126,092 $ - 126,002
73,388 - 73,388
43,242 - 43,242
17,617 - 17,617
9,579 - 9,579
11,148 - 11,148
281,066 - 281,066
267,102 - 267,102
19,593 - 19,593
2,522 - 2,522
289,217 - 289,217
(8,151) - (8,151)
589,509 700,000 1,289,509
(102,573) - (102,573)
$ 478,785 $ 700,000 1,178,785

Scc Indcpendent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2011

TEMTORARILY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and federal contracts $ 133,536 $ - S 133,536
Other contracts 45,495 - 45,495
Contributions - Cash 49,590 - 49,590
Fundraisers 17,496 - 17,496
Fees 10,848 - 10,848
Interst 2,632 2,632
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 259,597 - 259,597
EXPENSES
Program Services 239,635 - 239,635
Management and general 15,893 - 15,893
Fundraising 20,985 - 20,985
276,513 276,513
{Decrease) in net assets (16,916) - (16,916)
Net Assets, Beginning of year 606,425 700,000 1,306,425
Net assets, End of year $ 589,509 $ 700,000 $ 1,289,509

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Change in Deferred revenue net of prior period adjustment
Depreciation
Net (increase) decrease in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in contracts receivable
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll
(Decrease) in accrued compensated absences

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of year

2012 2011
$  (8151) $ (16916)
4,121 ;
29,297 26,336
(4,859) ;
410 1,610
6,021 1,119
2,352 (541)
(1,537) ;
27,654 11,608
(2,299) .
25,355 11,608
470,494 458,886
S 495,849 $ 470,494

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities

The Bridge House was incorporated in 2004, under the laws of the State of New Hampshire,

. .

asa Ut Fre nenfit? Avonmis o sxrafil sba AAansA o

Ak L v

DOL-01-pi0Al” Of 5u.uuat'1ﬁ\’)n. In accordance with its Mission Statement, the uut-xuryxuﬁt
organization provides shelter and services, including case management, to the homeless
population of the community to help them find and maintain permanent housing. Residents
are provided with services that include budgeting and credit counseling, parenting classes,
substance abuse counseling, and assistance in acquiring additional services from other state
and federal programs.

Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial statements and notes are
representations of the Organization’s management who is responsible for their integrity and
objectivity. These accounting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Staternent Presentation

Basis of Presentation: The Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets are comprised of operating revenues and expenses and
contributions pledged which are not subject to any donor-imposed restrictions.
Unrestricted net assets balances as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $478,785
and $589,509 respectively.

Temporarily restricted net assets are comprised of contributions and gifts for which
donor-imposed restrictions will be met either by the passage of time or the actions of
the Organization. Temporarily restricted net assets balances as of June 30, 2012 and
2011 totaled $700,000 and $700,000, respectively.

Permanently restricted net assets include those assets for which donor-imposcd
restrictions stipulate that the asset be permanently maintained by the Organization.
As of June 30, 2012 and 2011 the Organization had no permanently restricted net
assets.

-6-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property and Equipment

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $100 and all expenditures for
repairs, maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of
assets are capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the
approximate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily
the straight-line method. Depreciation Expense was $29,297 and $26,336 for the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 the Organization had no cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)3) of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Organizations tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1){A) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation
undet section 509(a)(2).

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to
the Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted nct assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions
are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets. Contributions of long-lived assets are considered unrestricted unless the donor
specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and pledges receivable using the allowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other
circumstances, which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations.
Receivables are considered impaired if full principal payments are not received in
accordance with the contractual terms. It is the Organization’s policy to charge off

-7
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions
(continued)

uncollectible grants and pledges receivable when management determines the receivable

will not be collected. ﬁThere were no balances in the allowance account related to pledges
receivable as of June BO, 2012 and 2011 because all amounis were deemed collectable.

Public Support and Revenue

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor.

Functional Expenses

Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated among program services based
on an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Compensated Absences

It is the Organization’s policy to permit certain employees to accumulate earned benefit
Time throughout the year which will be paid upon termination

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management'’s
assessment of the credit history with agencies, organizations and individuals having
outstanding balances and current relationships with them. Therc was no balance in the
allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require mahagement to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates,



THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 2. CONCENTATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization up to $250,000. At June 30, 2012 and
2011 the Organization had no uninsured balance.

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION IN SUPPORT REVENUE

Government and private sector grants accounted for approximately 71% and 69% of the
Organization's revenues for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 respectively.
Contributions accounted for approximately 15% and 19% of the Organization’s revenues for
the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

NOTE 4. CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE
Contracts receivable are conprised primarily of State of New Hampshire, Grafton County and
Town of Plymouth service agreements. In addition a private foundation has pledged support for
the Organization. ‘

NOTE 5. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets include the following at June 30:
2012 2011

Town of Plymouth, NH $ 700,000 $ 700,000

The Organization received a $700,000 grant from the Town of Plymouth, NH to assist with the
construction of a new facility during the year ended June 20, 2005. A mortgage deed in the
amount of $670,000 related to this grant has bcen recorded against the title of the property. The
Organization is required to continue the building’s use as a homeless shelter for a period of twenty
years. In the event of default, the Organization must return the funds or relinquish ownership of
the building to satisfy the restrictions.

NOTE 6. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - DEFERRED REVENUE

The Organization records Grants receivable that represent fee for service agreements for the next
fiscal year. In prior periods the amounts related to these agreements were recorded as current
period revenues in error. A prior period adjustment has been recorded in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 in order to recognize the deferred revenue these fee for service agreements
represent.




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011 ‘

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASE

Effective October 5, 2004, the Organization entered into a lease agreement with Whole Village
Family Resource Center to l¢ase a portion of the Center’s Premises. The term of the lease is for 50
years and expires October 4, 2054. The rent is $1 plus incremental costs, which are defined as
SnOW removal, repairs, 1awn‘care and umuat,apmg, uuuLy services, water and sewer, insurance and
other incidental costs mcurred by the Organization use of the premise. There is no lease expense
for the years ending June 30,\ 2012 and 2011. Incremental costs of use of the premise are included

in operating cxpenses and allocated by function.

Note 8. TAX EXEMPT STATUS

The Organization is a public charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of
the Internal revenue Code. The Organization reports it activities on federal form 990 annual
information return and does not believe it has done anything during the past year that would
jeopardize its tax-exempt status at either the statc or Federal level. These filings are subject to
review by the taxing authorities and the federal income tax returns for 2012, 2011, and 2010 are
subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the
Organization is under the opinion that there are no unsustainable positions that have been taken
in regards to federal or state income tax reporting requirements. Accordingly, management is not
aware of any unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities that should be recognized in the
accompanying statements.

NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fuir Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required (o disclose certain nitformanon about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30,
2012 and 2011 the Orgamzaqlon has no financial instruments subject to the disclosure
requirements. Cash and cash equivalents, grants and pledges receivable, accounts payable and
accrued expenses reported i m the statement of financial position approximate fair valucs because
of the short maturities of those instruments or because of the fixed rate of interest required to be
paid.

NOTE 10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization reccives mpney under various state and federal programs. Under the terms of
these programs, the Organization is required to expend the funds within the designated period for
purposes specified in the grait proposal. If expenditures of the funds were found not to have been
made in compliance with the proposal, the Organization might be required to return this portion

-10-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

of funds to the grantor. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, there were no known disallowed
expenditures and the Organization’s management deems such a contingency unlikely.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for this contingency.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has considered subsequent cvents through February 28, 2013, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. At that time, there were no material subsequent events,

-11-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITQ‘ RS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

Our report on our audit of the basid financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012 and our report dated February 28, 2013, which expressed an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements, appears on page one. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements|as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2012 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements, The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other rclfords used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this supplementary information for the year
ended June 30, 2012 is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. ! -

The schedule of functional cxpensjs of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2011 was audited by other
- auditors whose report dated July 2,/2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

Mkw,f’(/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 28, 2013

-12-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC |
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total

Payroll | $ 150,268 § 8,738 § 2,206  $161,212
Payroll taxes | 13,584 790 199 14,573
Employee benefits, health insurance 7,981 464 117 8,562

Total payroll expenses 171,833 © 9,992 - 2,522 184,347
Professional fees 1 6,590 3,920 - 10,510
Essential services : 1,584 - - 1,584
Telephone and internet 1,393 - - 1,393
Office supplies and postage - 4,749 - - 4,749
Depreciation : 1 26,367 2,930 - 29,297
Rent ‘ 1,500 - - 1,500
Utilities 11,556 1,284 - 12,840
Common area charges 3,618 402 - 4,020
Maintenance and repairs 9,042 1,005 - 10,047
Supplies | 4,917 - 4,917
Vehicle expenses 4,838 - - 4,838
Travel, training and conferences. 1,691 - - 1,691
Insurance : 11,922 - - 11,922
Criminal records search | 121 - - 121
Direct client services ; 3,816 - - 3,816
Website & Marketing 535 60 - 595

Miscellaneous ‘ 1,030 - - 1,030

TOTAL EXPEN$ES $ 267,102 $ 19,593 § 2,522 $289,217

See Independcnt Audjtors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
13-



e THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended Junc 30, 2011 |

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total

Payroll § 128,906 $ 2,789 3 5,579  $137,274
Payroll taxes - 15,755 332 498 16,585
Fringe benefits 134 34 - 168

Total payroll and benefits 144,795 3,155 6,077 154,027
Donated services 12,291 4,278 1,484 18,053
Professional fees 1,569 - - 1,569
Telephone and internet 2,902 - - 2,902
Office expense 2,246 562 - 2,808
Depreciation 23,702 2,634 - 26,336
Rent 41,627 4,459 - 46,086
Vehicle expense 3,909 - - 3,909
Training - 1,557 - - 1,557
Drug screenigs | 323 - - 323
Criminal records search | 96 - - 96
‘Direct client services | 4,585 - - 4,585
Fundraising - - 12,970 12,970
Website & Marketing - 438 438 876
Miscellancous 33 367 16 416

TOTAL EXPENSES § 239,635 $ 15,893 $ 20,985  $276,513

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-14-




BRIDGE HOUSE SHELTER AND VETERANS ADVOCACY
260 HIGHLAND STREET PLYMOUTH, NH 03264

NAME POSITION ADDRESS PHONE E-MAIL
Jeff Brown President - B ( "“"l TS ———
Finance \
, 4 B
Vice President | 4 l _
Brett Miller Development q )
Kathleen Secretary i i
Norris Development : ‘-l—'
Alan Tripp Treasurer 4 —
Finance
Governance & | 14 .
Rick Cote Nominating 1
Amy Bamnes Development ] t A
3
]
{
Steve Flynn Governance & [ 1 ¥ B
Nominating 1 - —
Betty Ann Governance —‘ [——
Trought &Nominating :
Flora Boyce Finance _‘ ; ——
- sencs Milidbaut o,
Director: Catherine Bentwood, RN
603 536-7631 bridgehouseinc@gmail.com
House Manager: Holly Cormiea SR




Catherine Bentwood RN

Qualifications:
Leadership experience with three non-profit agencies
N H Registered Nurse License# 034589-21
Proven record of building partnerships, collaborative networking
Skilled in physical/mental health care and patient education

Employment:

Jan 2009 -  Executive Director Bridge House Homeless Shelter
present

1989-2008  Patient advocate/evaluator/minor-op assistant general surgery office

1979-1987  Owner/developer Bodyworks Plymouth, NH
Planning and delivery full service health fitness for all ages
Researched/designed ongoing training for all instructors
Organized/designed all New England professional development workshop

1966-1973  St. Elizabeth's Hospital, Boston, MA — ICU
NE Deaconess, Boston, MA -ICU
South Coast Hospital, Laguna Beach, CA- M&S
Registered Nurse, Roosevelt Hospital School of Nursing, NYC

AWARDS
2011 Granite State Award: Co Recipient

2009 Chamber of Commerce/ James C Hobart Award

2001 Robert Craft/New England Patriots Community Champion Award — Co Recipient

1998 Rotary Citizen of the Year Award — Co Recipient

Volunteerism and Related experience:

BRIDGEHOUSE SHELTER

2010 - Initiated local collaboration to provide housing for homeless veterans.

2011 — 6™ Annual Community Family Fun Fair

2011 — Third annual state wide “Directors’ Unplugged” brainstorm

2009 - Lead BH “Green” Initiative

2008 - Talked Nick Mathis into invigorating The Teaching Gardens, now a town wide sustainable
project

2008 - Bridge House Board ppf Directors since 2001
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Objective

Experience

Education,
Training and
Accomplishments

Holly J. Cormiea

To pursug a challenging career in a Social Service field.

2003-Present Bridge House Inc. Plymouth, NH
Manager {July 1, 2005)

= Particpant Care Worker- July 03-05
e the daily operation of a 20 bed homeless shelter in Plymouth, NH.
ith area social services, charities, mental health, law enforcement, landlords

Lakes Region Comm. Svcs. Council Plymouth, NH
Direct Support Provider

Develop day program activities.
Complete daily and monthly reports.
Participate in Individual Service Plans
Assist with Activities of Daily Living.
Consumer employment support.
Have worked in all areas LRCSC.

CPR
Medication administration under HeM-1201

Reality| Therapy & Choice Theory

Defensive Driving Course

Mental Health Education classes .

omeless Management Information System

ch- with transitioned former participants & homeless community
Writing|Progress Notes & Quarterly Reports

Liaison|between Medical Professionals & Clients

Community integration

Rescue & Foster Dogs from High kill shelters

Wrote 501 (c) (3) for Rescue

Wirite grants for Rescue

e 6 ¢ ¢ ¢ o 6 ¢ & 0 0 0 o
O
=
0]
Q

Referencels available upon request




E I o, WP

10/31/13

Key Staff Salary Percentage of McKenney
Executive Director

Catherine Bentwood RN $36,000 0%

House Manager

Holly Cormiea $34,320 0%

Case Advocate

30-hour position TBA $31,200 0%




Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

AGREEMENT

The State of New) Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

1. IDENTIFICATION.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1  State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
Bridge House Shelter 260 Highland Street
Plymouth, NH 03264
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 536-7631 05-95-42-423010-7927 December 31,2013 $ 30,062.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9197

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Aty BENIaIs0) Exzunsi Siarrak

2
1.13  Acknowledgement: State of /4 ,|County of BRA¥Tor

On %efore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11,

and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.
1.13.1 Si%}y Public or

[Seal]
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

FAREN FREITAS A/omizy
1.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

: ' W Ann (D(
/ A=s ooabe Ry
1.16 Appftoval by the N.HWM of Administration, Division of Personnel (if appltcabT )
By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney Gen‘eral (Form, Substance and Execution)
By = KL on: /N 2003
ane ) et A Nty
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council
By: On:
Page 1 of 4




2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work of sale of goods, or

both, identified and more particularly describ
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by,
(“Services”).

ed in the attached
reference

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this

Agreement, and all obligations of the parties

hereunder, shall

not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (‘Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the

Effective Date, all Services performed by the
to the Effective Date shall be performed at th

Contractor prior
e sole risk of the

Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not

become effective, the State shall have no liab
Contractor, including without limitation, any

ility to the
obligation to pay

the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.

Contractor must complete all Services by the
specified inblock 1.7.

Completion Date

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are

contingent upon the availability and continu
of funds, and in no event shall the State be li
payments hereunder in excess of such availa
funds. In the event of a reduction or termina
appropriated funds, the State shall have the
payment until such funds become available,
have the right to terminate this Agreement i
giving the Contractor notice of such termina
shall not be required to transfer funds from a
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITA

PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment,

price.

appropriation
ble for any

le appropriated
ion of
ght to withhold
ever, and shall
mediately upon
ion. The State

y other account
vent funds in that

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”’), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.ER. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date inblock 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
petform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials
Date /0



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or/omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, ot all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thinty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice s|
of Default and suspending all payments to beé made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contragtor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

sue any of its

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “da
information and things developed or obtamned during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by|reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all ies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound|recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retirned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the/ completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report’) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Page 3 of 4

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor not any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATIONSUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily mjury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the msurance policies. The
cettificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

Contractor Initials
Date



aftached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a cla
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracti

e requiring the
Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten

(10) days prior written notice of cancellation
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

or modification

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A

(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall

maintain, and require any subcontractor or a
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Com|
connection with activities which the person
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Con
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compen
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-

signee to secure
ation in

oposes to
actor shall

lock 1.9, or his
ation in the
and any

applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are

incorporated herein by reference. The State
responsible for payment of any Workers' Co|
premiums or for any other claim or benefit fc
any subcontractor or employee of Contracto:
arise under applicable State of New Hamps
Compensation laws in connection with the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by
enforce any provisions hereof after any Ev
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard

Default, or any subsequent Event of Default.
failure to enforce any Event of Defanlt shall

waiver of the right of the State to enforce e
provisions hereof upon any further or other
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered
time of mailing by certified mail, postage pr
States Post Office addressed to the parties at
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

hall not be
ation
Contractor, or
which might
re Workers’
formance of the

e State to
of Default shall
that Event of
No express
e deemed a
and all of the
vent of Default

the other party
given at the

paid, in a United

the addresses

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,

waived or discharged only by an instrument
by the parties hereto and only after approval
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Gov
Executive Council of the State of New Hamy

n writing signed
of such

emor and

yshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accor
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is
inures to the benefit of the parties and their r
successors and assigns. The wording used i

is the wording chosen by the parties to expr

with the
inding upon and
spective

this Agreement

intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department
Emergency Solutions Grant

of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

Emergency Solutions Gra

SCOPE OF SERVICES

nt

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES:
1.1. Except as otherwise modified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with

the program narrative
operations, preventior
Housing Services, Off
hereafter referred to g
1.2. The Contractor agree
Court or federal or stg
has the right, following
expenditure requirem
compliance therewith
1.3. The Contractor shall f
to the funding of the S
records shall be main
funding from such pu
1.4. The Contractor shall
describing the numbe
required to provide th
required at the discre
1.5. All programs under th
permanent programs
Hampshire Homeless
contract must be fami
required for data ent
HMIS policy can be a
hmis.org.
1.6. Failure to submit the
delay or withholding g

confirmed by the State.

2. SERVICES:

. budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,

1, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and
lice of Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services,

s the State.

5 that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
te court orders may impact on the Services described herein, the State

g consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and

ents for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

yursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
ervices, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
tained by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
lic sources of funds.
rovide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff
service, as may be required by the State. Monthly reports may be
ion of the State.
s contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

re required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
iar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is

, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH
cessed electronically through the following website: http://mwww.nh-

bove reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the
f reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
services in accordance with the description(s) cited below:

2.1. Stewart B. McKinney Program, 24 CFR part 576

2.2. Contractor shali use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions

Grant funds for:

O Prevention/Intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with

foreclosure notice
homelessness.

, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent

[0 Essential Services, such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment
counseling, substance abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,
and staff salaries and benefits.

& Operations Activit
and supplies.

CA/DHHS/100213

ies, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,

Exhibit A Contractor Initials
Page 1 of 1
Date



New Hampshire Department
Emergency Solutions Grant

of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

METHO

D AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grai
The following financial conditio
Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the N
under the Catalog of Federal Dx
NH General Fund:

Federal Funds:

CFDA #:

Federal Agency:

Program Title:

Total Amount Emergency Solu
2013:

Funds allocation under this agn
Operating expenses:

Total program amount:

1. Subject to the General Pro
completion of the services
Contractor for operations, g
through the U.S. Departme
Program, in an amount not

2. REPORTS.
As part of the performance of t
following:

2.1. Progress Reports: S
identify the status of t
services prior to the G
services, shall be sub
on forms supplied by
Audited Financial Rep
the regulations that im
report shall be submit
Where the Contractor
(90) days after the Cqa
be submitted to the St
“Standards for Audit g
Comptroller General ¢

2.2.

2.3.

PROJECT COSTS: PAYM
3.1. Project Costs: As use
directly or indirectly in
determined by the Stz
102-550 as well as all
to time and with the ry
subcontractors shall n
Payment of Project C
consideration of the s
Agreement, the State

3.2

CA/DHHS/100213

nt .
ns apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — Emergency

New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
lomestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:
Not applicable

14.231
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Emergency Solutions Grant
ions Grant Program;
not to exceed $ 30,062.00

eement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program;
$30,062.00
$30,062.00

visions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory

to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds provided

nt of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant
to exceed and for the time period specified above.

he Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the

miannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which

he Services performed, the outiook for completion of the remaining
ompletion Date and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the
mitted by the 15th of the month following the end of each six month period
he State

ort: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
plement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financiat
ted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.

is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
mpletion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
ate. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in

f Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions” by the
f the United States.

ENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

2d in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
curred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as

te to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
owable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
iles, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit

neet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

osts: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
atisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this

agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed the

Exhibit B Contractor Initials
Page 10of 3

Date




New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this Agreement. The State
agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in accordance with such other
schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency

Solutions Grants Prog
regulations.
The Contractor shall s
each bimonthly period

ram; Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act and all applicable

ubmit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the conclusion of
or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the

funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.

Upon release of addit

onal Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for balance

of contracted amount as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.
Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture

pursuant to 24 CFR §

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

ubsection 576.55.

Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIA

L MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be transferred
between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written authorization from the
State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer
of other funds where such transfer is permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor

shall be required to continu

e providing the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall

make no adjustments so as to incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent
years without prior written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213

Exhibit B Contractor Initials _/./
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2013:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM McKinney Funds Match
Operations $30,062.00 $30,062.00
Shelter operational| costs such as
rent, utilities, insurance, and
supplies
TOTALS $30,062.00 $30,062.00
TOTAL Federal+Match $60,124.00
CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B8 Contractor Initials
Page 3of 3

Date
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New Hampshire Department
State Grant In Aid and Suppc

of Health and Human Services
ortive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Subparagraph 4 of the G
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATUR
Notwithstanding any provig
including without limitation
are contingent upon contin
changes to the appropriatic
executive action that redug
funding for this Agreement
whole or in part. In no evel
appropriated or available fi
appropriated or available ft
become available, if ever.

under this Agreement imm
modification. The State sh
the Account(s) identified in
account, in the event funds

Add the following to Parag

5.5. Upon execution of {
Notification of Fund
accordance with EXk
Notification of Fundir

5.6. Funds obligated un

accordance with this

Add the following to Parag
6.1. In connection with
statutes, laws, regul

Special Provisions

eneral Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

E OF AGREEMENT.

ion of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
ued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent

on or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legistative or

es, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in

nt shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of

unds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of

inds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
ediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
all not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other

are reduced or unavailable.

raph 5:

he Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
ng Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
HIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
g Approval.

der this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

raph 6.1:
the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
tions, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which

impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR

Part 107.

Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1.

that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance

with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing

Program r
Opportunity
Application
that the gra
funds used
the Applicq
applicable
Application
that no mo
expenses;
that, excep
not:
6.4.4.1.

6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

COl
on

CA/DHHS/100213

gulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the

ant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
to assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
tion or were designated for such use through an official action of the
governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the

re than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
t as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall

nduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed
the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district;

Contractor Initials {_.. ?4 é

Exhibit C
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New Hampshire Department|of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer;

canduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
mpp by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

cgnduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce's
National Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as
species; and

be inconsistent with HUD’s environmental standards at 24 CFR Part 51 or
with the State’s Coastal Zone Management Plan;

that the Contractor shall make it known that use of the facilities and services is
available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. Where the procedures that the
Contractor |intends to use to make known the avaitability of services are unlikely to
reach perspns of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and |services;

that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.

that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources |Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

6.4.4.2.

6.4.4.3.

6.4.4.4.

6.4.5.

6.4.6.

6.4.7.

6.4.8.

6.4.9.

5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:
7.4. ltis understood and agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this

7.5.

6. Add the following to Parag

Agreement, the Cg
consultant, officer, g
that receives Suppo
or responsibilities w
decision making pra
personal or financis

ntractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,
r elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
rtive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
th respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
cess or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
| interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,

subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or

herself or those with
one year thereafter.
The Contractor shal

whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for

I not employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors

or subcontractors during any period of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
status as determined pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

raph 8.:

8.3. The State may deabligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant {f the total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the approved grant.

8.4. The State may deobligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed

CA/DHHS/100213

acquisition/rehabilita
accordance with the
time thereafter.

tion or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in
development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable
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8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

The Contractor sh
moderate rehabilita
homeless for a te
Agreement.

all repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
ion grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
n year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this

For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless following the
expiration of the ten year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the

date of initial occu

pancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the

acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.
Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer

needed as transitio

Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons.

nal housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
In such event, for purposes of

determining the Contractor's repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is t

aken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the

acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

7. Add the following to Parag

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

raph 9.:

Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor’'s normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,

publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this

Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties.

persons, natural or
affiliate of, the entity
this Agreement.

During the perform

The term “Contractor” includes all
fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an
identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of

nce of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the

Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

Fiscal Recards: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting a determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained |in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contributions, labor
time cards, |payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserye property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to| the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is |ater.

Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year
retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or
the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the
Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller
General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The

9.5.2.

9.5.3.

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
Page 3of 6

Date




New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,
collectively or separately, to audit, examine and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data and other information relating to all matters
covered in this Agreement.

8. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language:
10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of

the State, 30 days |after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its

option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early

termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients

receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

The Contractor shal
to support the Trans|
the State related to
ongoing communica
In the event that se

fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
tion Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide

tion and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

rvices under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving

services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

10.5.

9. Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

10. Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT

20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for
the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contractor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordance with the
Project Sponsor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application,

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period following the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten

years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Contractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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20.2.5. The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

20.3.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

20.4.

accordance
residents to
in accordan

with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
ce with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or

(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and

a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition ofithe structure and the operation of the Project.

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS
20.3.1.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project|is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contragtor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, -recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

OTHER PROGRAM|REQUIREMENTS

If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

20.41
20.4.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

2045.

20.4.6.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
all persons regardless of religion; and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the |essee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased |premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor’s financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR Part 44, and

Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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20.4.7. the Contractor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may
require. Estimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate
rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials
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1. Retroactive Payments — In
Notwithstanding anything to th
agreement or understanding, it
payments will be made hereun
prior to the Effective Date of th
Contractor for any services pra
(except as otherwise provided
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — C
Notwithstanding anything to the¢
agreement or understanding, it
payments will be made hereun
prior to the Effective Date of th

3. Audit Requirement

The Contractor shall deliver to
Provisions, an independent au
the funds received under this A
The following requirement shal
funds received under this or an
aggregate in a one year fiscal |
provisions of OMB Circular A-1

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press n
from the performance of the sg
preparation of this (report, doct
Hampshire, Department of Heg
funds provided in part or in wh

CA/DHHS/100213

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

dividual Services
e contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,

is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no

der to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual

s Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
vided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or

by the federal regulations}) prior to a determination that the individual is

pntractor Services
e contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,

is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no

der to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes

s Agreement.

the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
dit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including

greement.

I apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federat

y other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the

heriod the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the

28, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

eleases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
rvices or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
ument, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New

Ith and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
vle by HUD.”
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NH De

CERTIFICATION RE(

The Contractor identified in Sec
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug
701 et seq.), and further agrees
1.12 of the General Provisions €|

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANT

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCA]
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICU

This certification is required t
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.
regulations were amended and
21691), and require certification
award, that they will maintain a
grantee (and by inference, su
certification to the Department
federal fiscal year covered by th
fact upon which reliance is plac
certification shall be grounds
government wide suspension or

N

(A) The grantee certifies tha
(a) Publishing a statemg
dispensing, possess
and specifying the a

Page / of Z
2partment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

GARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

tion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
xecute the following Certification:

EES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

1 AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
TION - CONTRACTORS
LTURE - CONTRACTORS

by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
b-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
n each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
1e certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
ed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
H Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

it it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
ent notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

ion or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
ctions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an pngoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements

January 2009
Page 10of 2
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy|of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute joccurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

H Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (g)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (&), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
260 AHLéereAaND S FPL L et N S =2cy

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Beis z Fromy/y / 22 To: 4245/ /3
(Contractor'Name) Period Cdvered by this Certification)
Mr%_imﬁﬂz&_&m&._
(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Represernitative)
- —
> sz 7/3 ) LZ

ontractor Representafive Signature) (Date) 4 ° 4

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor InitiaIS'é Z 2

Standard Exhibit D - Centification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009 Date:
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Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Gover
and further agrees to have the Con
Provisions execute the following Ce

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATIO

1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section

nment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,

tractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

rtification:

ND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
N - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covel

ed):

*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

*Child Support Enforcement Program under
*Social Services Block Grant Program under
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title
*Child Care Development Block Grant under

Contract Period: through

itle IV-D
Title XX

2 VI

Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the be
(1) No Federal appropriated fund
person for influencing or att
Congress, an officer or emplo
the awarding of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or coope

if any funds other than Federa
or attempting to influence an
employee of Congress, or an
grant, loan, or cooperative

undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,
s, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

accordance with its instruction
(3) The undersigned shall require
sub-awards at all tiers (includi
agreements) and that all sub-n

This certification is a material repr
made or entered into. Submission
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31,

to a civil penalty of not less than $1(

st of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

s have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any

empting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
yee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with

contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal

rative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

| appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing

1 officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
(Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in

» that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
ng subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
ecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

esentation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was

of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction

1).S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
0,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

P

ﬁmtrador Representative Signature)

TAhce

(Contractor Name)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding
January 2009

(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

) Aettz

/9

7/ 3/
777

(Date)

Contractor Initials:( zé
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partment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

ION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
) OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

NH De

CERTIFICAT
ANIL

ction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
ent, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,

The Contractor identified in Se
Executive Office of the Presid

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIF
1. By signing and s
providing the certifi

ICATION
ubmitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
cation set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result

in denial of particip
shall submit an ex
explanation will be
Services’' (DHHS)
the prospective pri
such person from g

The certification in
placed when DHHS
prospective primarn
other remedies av.
for cause or defaul

The prospective p
agency to whom tt
participant learns
erroneous by reasg

The terms “covere
transaction,” “partic

ation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
planation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human

determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
mary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify

articipation in this transaction.

this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was

S determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
y participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
ailable to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
.

rimary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS

nis proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary

that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
on of changed circumstances.

» BT

d transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “i
sipant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,

neligible,” “lower tier covered
" “principal,” “proposal,” and

»ou

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions

and Coverage sec|
See the attached d

The prospective pr]
the proposed cove
tier covered transa
voluntarily exclude
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatiol

Standard Exhibit F —
Certification Regarding Debarment, Su
January 2009
Page 10f 3

tions of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
efinitions.

mary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
red transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
ction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
d from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by

ns
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7.

10.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANS/

(1

(@)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit F ~
Certification Regarding Debarment, Su

January 2009
Page 2 of 3

The prospective p
include the clause
Voluntary Exclusi
maodification, in all
transactions.

Page 2 of E

rimary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
titted “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and

on - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without

ower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective

participant in a low

er tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or

involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is

erroneous. A parti

eligibility of its principals.

Nonprocurement L.

Nothing contained
records in order

cipant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
st (of excluded parties).

in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
o render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The

knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transact
a covered transac
who is suspended
transaction, in add
terminate this trans

The prospective pr|
its principals:

(a) are not presen

ions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
ion knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
ition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
action for cause or default.

ACTIONS
mary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and

tly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of

or had a civil
offense in co
(Federal, State
Federal or Stat
falsification or

property;
(c)

are not presen
entity (Federal

paragraph (I)(b

have not within
public transact

(d)

Where the prospec
certification, such
(contract).

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
nnection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
e antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

tly indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmentat
, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
) of this certification; and

a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
ons (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

tive primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

Contractor Initials:Z z:é
Date: /J//// =
7 / /

spension and Other Responsibility Matters
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,

as defined in 45 CFR
principals:

Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal

departmer

(b) where the

t or agency.

prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,

such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower
will include this clause
Voluntary Exclusion -
covered transactions a

tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
nd in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

- Carangems .
ontractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title
Bri A\éﬁ_ng usp SHecTER. [OLe S
(Contractor Name) (Daté) 4

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatians Contractor Initials: ( Z S

Standard Exhibit F —

January 2009

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters /
Date: /0/,/5///3

Page 3 0of 3
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2partment of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
CANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Se

representative as identified in
certification:

1. By signing and subm

efforts to comply with 3

A

(Contractor Representative Signatl

DL E

e

ction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

tting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
Il applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

77 = ZDI/L

ure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

LTEL.

(Contractor Name)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatig
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regg
January 2009

Vol I3
o

(Date)

ns
arding the Americans With Disabilities Act

Contractor Initials:_/ ?Zé
Date:

/2 %/ég 1
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - E
(Act), requires that smoking n
contracted for by an entity and
or library services to children u
directly or through State or log
law does not apply to childr
Medicare or Medicaid funds, a
to comply with the provisions ¢
$1000 per day and/or the impo

The Contractor identified in Se
representative as identified in
certification:

1. By signing and submitting
with all applicable provision

nvironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
ot be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
nder the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
al governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
n’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
d portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
sition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

ction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
s of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

) Ense. -—DJQ/

(Contractor Representative Signathre) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Bﬁlbéf /ﬁ“/mzﬁe,

SHerrEe VI Wh~

(Contractor Name)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatio
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke

January 2009

(Date)

ns

Contractor Initials: 4 :2

Date: /é//(//.?
Va4
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

HEALTH INSU

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
RANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business

Associate” shall mean the Con

tractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or

have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have t

13400.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

he same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has
Federal Regulations.

the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations™ in 45

CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, P

the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
art | & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health

Information, 45 CFR P

arts 160, 162 and 164.

i.  “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501

and shall include a per:
Section 164.501(g).

3

J-  “Privacy Rule” shall

son who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business A
September 2009
Page 1 of 6

ssociate Agreement Contractor Initials:é iéﬁ
Date: 4%425 /L ;/5
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business A
September 2009
Page 2 of 6

. “Secretary ” shall mean

Page Z— of ;

“Protected Health Infprmation” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” sLall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

designee.

the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

“Security Rule” shall |mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 4

5 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured

by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established

under 45 C.F.R. Parts 1

Use and Disclosure of|

60, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information

(PHI) except as reaso
Agreement. Further, t
employees and agents,
constitute a violation o

Business Associate ma
I. For the pr
IL. As require
I11. For data a

ably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
e Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
the Privacy and Security Rule.

use or disclose PHI:

er management and administration of the Business Associate;

by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
gregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;

and (ii) an agreement

om such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the

HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to

the extent it has obtaing

d knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide

services under Exhibit
disclosure on the basis
Covered Entity has an
Covered Entity objects

A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the

PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

Contractor Initials: éz 45
Date: 4;4 4% / é’é
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 3of 6

Page = of 4

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and

shall abide by any addj

tional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure

of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident

involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

13402.

The Business Associat

e shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set

forth in, the HITECH |Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and

records relating to the
Business Associate on
Covered Entity’s comp

Business Associate sha
PHI under the Agreem
the use and disclosure
provided under Sectiot
third party beneficiary
intended business asso

use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
liance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

11l require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
ent, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
n (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
y of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
ciates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights

of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected

health information.

Within five (5) busingss days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall make
agreements, policies a

available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
nd procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered

Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) busin
Associate shall provid

ess days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
e access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as

directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR

Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an

amendment of PHI or

a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the

Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

Section 164.526.

Contractor Initials: é 2742

Date: ///,////;
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 4 of 6

Page % of é

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such

disclosures as would b

¢ required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for

an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of discipsures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting

of disclosures with res

In the event any indivi
the Business Associatg

request to Covered Hntity.

pect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

dual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
2, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to

forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would

cause Covered Entity

or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security

Rule, the Business Asgociate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) businy
Associate shall return

ess days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or

created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not

retain any copies or b
disposition of the PHI

ack-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall

continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so

long as Business Asso

ciate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires

that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHL

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of

permission provided t

» Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by

Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall
disclosure of PHI that

promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the

extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Contractor Initials: é Z
Date:/e//ﬁ;/ﬁ
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 5 of 6

Termination for Cause

Pageiof_é

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately

terminate the Agreeme

nt upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of

the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either

immediately terminate

the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure

the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines

that neither terminatig
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

n nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall

have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as

amended from time to

time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,

to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered
amend the Agreement,

Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the

changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

Data Ownership. The
respect to the PHI prov

Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
ided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any tex
or circumstance is hel

can be given effect wit
this Exhibit I are declar

Survival. Provisions
destruction of PHI, ext
indemnification provis
termination of the Agre

m or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
d invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
hout the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
red severable.

in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retun or
ensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
lons of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
zement.

Contractor Initials: é 52 S
Date: ZQ/ 42% /L é




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the

N f Dpf 225

Pageé__ of_@

parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

BRides HNoye e SHELTEL.

The State Agenc’y Name

Ty Pl

Name of the Contractor

Signature of Aut fzed Repre:;'éntative

7 fornlomo

T St 20
Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Ay{thorized Represe tgie(e

fssocabe ()

Carpizeve Bzusmwio )

Name of Authorized Representative

e .7/7542 1REC TOL

Title of Authorized Representa

A

Title of Authorized Representative

////Ol/f

Date '

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business A
September 2009
Page 6 of 6

ssociate Agreement

/o //é/ /=

Date ‘

Contractor Initials: V4 :2 5
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CERTIFICATION REG

Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

ARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRA

ANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of

individual Federal grants equai
report on data related to execu
If the initial award is below $2
over $25,000, the award is subj

In accordance with 2 CFR Part
Department of Health and Hum
subaward or contract award sul

1)
2)
3)
4)
3)
6)
7)

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contra
Program source
Award title descriptive
Location of the entity
8) Principle place of perfq
9) Unique identifier of the
10) Total compensation ang
a. More than 809
revenues are gf
b. Compensation

Prime grant recipients must sub
the award or award amendment

The Contractor identified in Se

! to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
tive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
5,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
an Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
yject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

cts / CFDA program number for grants
of the purpose of the funding action

rmance
entity (DUNS #)

d names of the top five executives if:

, of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
eater than $25M annually and

information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

mit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
is made.

ction 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further

agrees to have the Contractor]

s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and T

—

(Contractor Representative Signature)

ransparency Act.

r A 0%/05 &QZ@oQé Z'ggg A/@

(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Briics fuse SHcerE e

(Contractor Name)

[0 S )=
7 /

(Date)

Contractor initials: 42 5

Date: /91//é yyzc
Page # / 6‘ Page # é




NH

As the Contractor identified in
below listed questions are true

1. The DUNS number for your

2. In your business or organiza
receive (1) 80 percent or more
grants, sub-grants, and/or coopg
from U.S. federal contracts, suly

v/_NO
]
If the answ

3. Does the public have access
or organization through periodi
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780

NO

Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the

and accurate.

Rl 5,0 Ba=

entity 1s:

tion’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
nf your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
erative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
ycontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES

[f the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
er to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
o information about the compensation of the executives in your business
c reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

YES

f the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

organization are as follows:
Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

Amount; ______
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

Amount:

Contractor initials: _// é

Date: /06 // =
Page # 27 o(Page# 2 —
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I, William M. Gardner,

certify that The Bridge

ate of Nefw Hampslive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

House, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed

February 24, 2004. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I heteto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5 day of June A.D. 2013

oy ol

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY/VOTE

I, JEFFREY M. BROWN, do hereby|certify that:
1. Tam aduly cleeted PRESIDENT of THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC. (The Corporation)

1. The following are truc copies of two resolutions duly adopted at 2 meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation
duly held on OCTOBER 16, 2013

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting througl

its Department of Health and Human Services Office of Human Services, Bureau of Homeless Housing Services
concerning the following Matter: US Department of Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions Grant
Funds.

-

RESOLVED: That CATHERINE BENTWOQOD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR is hereby authorized on behalf of
this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

2. The forgoing resolutions have not begen amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect
as of October 16, 2013.

3. CATHERINE BENTWOOD is the duly authorized EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR of the Corporation.

Nw b
JEFFR WROWN BOARD PRESIDENT

The Bfidgk Touse, Inc.

STATE OF /1/ ) A/M/gs //@
County of (/fo{

The foregoing instriment was acknowledged before me this 26th day of November, 2013, by JEFFREY M.
BROWN.

(NOTARY SEAL) | /\[/’1 fzray Z\OA///&

Notary Public / Justice-ofthePefcd

Deborah Duffy

Commission Expjres: ——Notary-Public —
Naw Hampshire

My Cofmmission Expires 2:9-2015
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDD/YYY)
9/16/2013

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADI

TIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies} must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain pplicies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s)

PRODUCER
E & S Insurance Services LLC
21 Meadowbrook Lane

P O Box 7425

SMIACT pat Mack

PHONE (603) 293-2791

fﬁ.m (603)293-7108

-MAA

..&DQB.ES: patéesinsurance.com
INSURERYS) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC

Gilford NH 03247-7425 msurer A Markel
INSURED nsurer B:Markel Insurance Co
The Bridge House, Inc. INSURER € :
260 Highland Street INSURERD :
INSURERE :
Plymouth RH 03264 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE/NUMBER:2013 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMEN

T. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

SR
IR TYPE OF INSURANCE ' POLICY MIMBER ORABON T ) | (OO LTS
GENERAL LMBILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LABILITY e 100,000
A | cams-maoe I—L—I OCCUR 502582665708 /172013 77172014 | yep exp any one persony | § 5,000
— PERSONALS ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
|| GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE UIMIT APPUES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 1,000,000
X | poucy R Loc $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COWBINED SINGLE LM | | 1,000,000
A X | ANy AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
[ | :&T gngED gg;ggu_eo 1002552665719 7/1/2813 [1/1/20614 | BODIY INJURY (Per accident)| $
] N-OWNED
HREDAUTOS | | AUTOR T MAGE s
Medical payments $ 5,000
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
pep || RETENTIONS s
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION WCSTATS T [OTHF
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY YIN IIQR[ LMTS ER
OFHCHIMENEER BXCLDED? o | [N#a , ELeacHacoDENT |8 100,000
in NH) ’ MaC0037234-02 9/10/2613 B/10/2014 | £\ [ySEASE- EA EMPLOYER § 100,000
Ifyes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
A [Abuse or Molestation 0285266570-8 F/172013  @/1/2014 | occunenceraggregate §1,000,000
A |Professional 0255266570-8 7/1/2013 [1/1/2014 | Each Act 1,000,000 Agg 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS SLOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Re: Funding

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of RH, Dept of Health i
Bureau of Homeless & Housing
Attn: Anne Pocock
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

-

Human Serv

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOYE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIYERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pat Mack/PAT

Pﬁt___mﬂ/\o{,k

ACORD 25 (2010/05)
INSO28 ninnsy

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

Thae ACNPRN nama and lnAan ara renicterad marke nf AC-NRN




Bridge House pro

area's homeless population.

ability to respond

providing the nect

Bridge House
Mission Statement

vides emergency and transitional shelter to the

Its mission is to enhance the resident’s
to life’s challenges and secure independence by
=ssary support and skills to return to the community.

The goal of this program is to help residents connect to needed

services, benefits

and/ or employment, establish and manage their

income, secure permanent, affordable housing and provrde follow up

upon exiting from

To accomplish thi
the community, Br
tenets:

Empowerment
Assisting the resic

Bridge House.

s goal of living self determined and fulfilling lives in
idge House adheres 1o the followmg philosophical

lents in recognizing individual strengths and

abilities, utilization of those strengths to resolve problems in a

collaborative man

Collaboration
Working with resi

ner and foster independence.

dents, co-workers, family members and community

agencies to provide knowledge, skills and resources to maximize
~ opportunities for growth and long term independence.

Change Orientati
Believing in the a
agencies — to lea
difficult barriers.

on .

bility of the reS|dents staff, communities and
rm, grow and change, even when facing the most
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Bridge House, Inc (a non-
profit organization) as of June 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2011 were audited
by other auditors whose report dated July 2, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We bclieve that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statemtnts referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of The Bridge Ho
assets and its cash flows for the year

se, Inc as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net
s then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

looly = A, PO

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 28, 2013




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Contracts receivable
Prepaid expenses
' TOT

FIXED ASSETS

Building and improvements

Furnishings and equipment
Total Fixed Asscts
Less accumulated depreciat

AL CURRENT ASSETS

ion

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll expenses

Accrued compensated absences

Deferred revenue
TOTAL Q

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net a

TOTAL LIABILIT]

'URRENT LIABILITIES

ssets
TOTAL NET ASSETS

[ES AND NET ASSETS

2012 2011

$ 495,849 $ 470,494
115,162 110,303

10 420

611,021 581,217
833,680 833,680
39912 37,613
873,592 871,293
(184,679) (153,250)
688,913 718,043

$ 1,299,934 $ 1,299,260
S 9,159 $ . 3,138
4,142 1,790

3,286 4,823

104,562 -

121,149 9,751
478,785 589,509
700,000 700,000
1,178,785 1,289,509

S 1,299,934 § 1,299,260

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

TYor The Year Endcd June 30, 2012

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and federal contracts
Other Grants
Contributions - Cash
Fundraisers
Fees
Interst

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program Services
Management and general

Fundraising

(Decrease) in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year
Prior period adjustment

Net assets, end of year

TEMPORARILY
UNRESTRICTED  RESTRICTED TOTAL

$ 126,092 $ - 126,002
73,388 - 73,388

43,242 - 43,242

17,617 - 17,617

9,579 - 9,579

11,148 - 11,148

281,066 - 281,066

267,102 - 267,102

19,593 - 19,593

2,522 - 2,522

289,217 - 289,217
(8,151) - (8,151)
589,509 700,000 1,289,509
(102,573) - (102,573)

$ 478,785 $ 700,000 1,178,785

Scc Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Ycar Ended June 30, 2011

TEMFORARILY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
State and federal contracts $ 133,536 $ - 5 133,536
Other contracts 45,495 - 45,495
Contributions - Cash 49,590 49,590
Fundraisers 17,496 17,496
Fees 10,848 - 10,848
Interst 2,632 - 2,632
TOTAL SUPPORT AND TLEVENUE 259,597 259,597
EXPENSES
Program Services 239,635 239,635
Management and general 15,893 - 15,893
Fundraising 20,985 20,985
276,513 276,513
(Decrease) in net assets (16,916) - (16,916)
Net Assets, Beginning of year 606,425 700,000 1,306,425
Net assets, End of year $ 589,509 $ 700,000 $ 1,289,509

See Independent

Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile incre
to net cash provided by ope

ase (decrease) in net assets
rating activities:

Change in Deferred revenue net of prior period adjustment

Depreciation
Net (increase) decrease in oper

rating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in contracts receivable
Decrease in prepaid expenses

Increase in accounts pays
Increase (decrease) in acq
(Decrease) in accrued cot

NET CASH PROVID

able
rrued payroll
mpensated absences

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equ

ipment

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of year

See Independent ;

.5.

ED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2012 2011
$ (8,151) § (16916)
4,121 ;
29,297 26,336
(4,859) -
410 1,610
6,021 1,119
2,352 (541)
(1,537) -
27,654 11,608
(2,299) ;
25,355 11,608
470,494 458,886
S 495,849 $ 470,494

Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATE
June 30, 2012 and 2011

MENTS

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Bridge House was in

asa Umnt_fnr nerafit? nenn

corporated in 2004, under the laws of the State of New Hampshire,

Nigatinn Tn annnerdanaa st 6o NAiaos

Ce. +h & £ ~ L
LVITIVATPAUVILL  VIKGLULALIVIL, 11l GLLUlLalive YWilll J.LD iv1iS3Ii0I v Lau:un,ut, nc UUL'LUL 'yl. Oril

organization provides she
population of the commu
are provided with service;
substance abuse counseli
and federal programs.

Significant Accounting Polic

2lter and services, including case management, to the homeless

nity to help them find and maintain permanent housing. Residents
s that include budgeting and credit counseling, parenting classes,
ng, and assistance in acquiring additional services from other state

ies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding the Organization’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are

representations of the Or

objectivity. These accoun

principles and have been
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements

panization’s management who is responsible for their integrity and
ting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of

accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

Basis of Presentation:

The Organization is required to report information regarding its

financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets are comprised of operating revenues and expenses and

contributions
Unrestricted n

ﬂxledged which are not subject to any donor-imposed restrictions.

et assets balances as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 totaled $478,785

and $589,509 respectively.

Temporarily restricted net assets are comprised of contributions and gifts for which
donor-imposed restrictions will be met either by the passage of time or the actions of

the Organizati
2011 totaled $

on. Temporarily restricted net assets balances as of June 30, 2012 and

700,000 and $700,000, respectively.

Permanently restricted net assets include those assets for which donor-imposed

restrictions stipulate that the asset be permanently maintained by the Organization.

As of June 30,
assets.

2012 and 2011 the Organization had no permanently restricted net

-6-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property and Equipment

All acquisitions of p:

roperty and equipment in excess of $100 and all expenditures for

repairs, maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of

assets are capitalized
approximate fair val
the straight-line met}

1. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the
ue at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily
hod. Depreciation Expense was $29,297 and $26,336 for the years

ended Junc 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the staterent of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid

investments with an
years ended June 30

Income Taxes

The Organization is

initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
2012 and 2011 the Organization had no cash equivalents.

exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S.

Internal Revenue Cade. However, income from certain activities not directly related to the
Organizations tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section
170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation
under section 509(a)(2).

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to
the Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted nct assets if the restricons expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions
are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets. Contributions of long-lived assets are considered unrestricted unless the donor
specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and pledges receivable using the allowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other
circumstances, which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations.
Receivables are considered impaired if full principal payments are not received in

accordance with the

contractual terms. It is the Organization’s policy to charge off

-7-
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pledges (Contracts) Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions
(continued)

uncoliectible grants an pledges receivable when management determines the receivable

will not be collected. | There were no balances in the allowance account related to pledges
receivable as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 because all amounts were deemed collectable.

Public Support and Revenue

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor.

Functional Expenses

Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated among program services based
on an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Compensated Absences

It is the Organization’s policy to permit certain employees to accumulate earned benefit
Time throughout the year which will be paid upon termination

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s
assessment of the credit history with agencies, organizations and individuals having
outstanding balances and current relationships with them. Therc was no balance in the
allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates,




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 2. CONCENTATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains
insured by the Federal Depc
2011 the Organization had 1

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION Il

3 cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts are
ysit Insurance Organization up to $250,000. At June 30, 2012 and
no uninsured balance.

N SUPPORT REVENUE

Government and private sector grants accounted for approximately 71% and 69% of the

Organization’s revenues

for the years ended Junc 30, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

Contributions accounted for approximately 15% and 19% of the Organization’s revenues for

the years ended June 30,

2012 and 2011 respectively.

NOTE 4. CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Contracts receivable are comprised primarily of State of New Hampshire, Grafton County and
Town of Plymouth service agreements. In addition a private foundation has pledged support for

the Organization.

NOTE 5. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Temporarily restricted net asscts include the following at June 30:
2012 2011
Town of Plymouth, NH $ 700,000 $ 700,000

The Organization received a|$700,000 grant from the Town of Plymouth, NH to assist with the
construction of a new facility during the year ended June 20, 2005. A mortgage deed in the
amount of $670,000 related to this grant has becn recorded against the title of the property. The
Organization is required to continue the building’s use as a homeless shelter for a period of twenty
years. In the event of default, the Organization must return the funds or relinquish ownership of

the building to satisfy the res

trictions.

NOTE 6. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - DEFERRED REVENUE

The Organization records Grants receivable that represent fee for service agreements for the next
fiscal year. In prior periods the amounts related to these agreements were recorded as current
period revenues in error. A prior period adjustment has been recorded in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 in order to recognize the deferred revenue these fee for service agreements

represent.




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASE

Effective October 5, 2004, the Organization entered into a lease agreement with Whaole Village
Family Resource Center to Jease a portion of the Center’s Premises. The term of the lease is for 50

Note 8. TAX EXEMPT STATUS

years and expires October 4,
SHOW removal, repairs, lawn
other incidental costs incurre
for the years ending June 30,

2054. The rent is $1 plus incremental costs, which are defined as
care and landscaping, utility services, water and sewer, insurance and
d by the Organization use of the premise. There is no lease expense
2012 and 2011. Incremental costs of use of the premise are included

in operating cxpenses and allocated by function.

The Organization is a public
the Internal revenue Code. 1
information return and does

charity exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501 (c) (3) of
'he Organization reports it activities on federal form 990 annual
not believe it has done anything during the past year that would

jeopardize its tax-exempt status at either the state or Federal level. These filings are subject to

review by the taxing authorit
subject to examination by the

ies and the federal income tax returns for 2012, 2011, and 2010 are
» IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

In accordance with FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, the

Organization is under the op:

inion that there are no unsustainable positions that have been taken

in regards to fcderal or state income tax reporting requirements. Accordingly, management is not
aware of any unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities that should be recognized in the

accompanying statements.

NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required to disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. As of June 30,
2012 and 2011 the Organization has no financial instruments subject to the disclosure

requirements. Cash and cash
accrued expenses reported in

equivalents, grants and pledges receivable, accounts payable and
the statement of financial position approximate fair valucs because

of the short maturities of those instruments or because of the fixed rate of interest required to be

paid.

The Organization reccives m

NOTE 10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

oney under various state and federal programs. Under the terms of

these programs, the Organization is required to expend the funds within the designatcd period for
purposes specified in the grant proposal. If expenditures of the funds were found not to have been

made in compliance with the

proposal, the Organization might be required to return this portion

-10-
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THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

of funds to the grantor. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, there were no known disallowed
expenditures and the Organization’s management deems such a contingency unlikely.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for this contingency.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has considered subsequent events through February 28, 2013, the date the financial

statements were available to

be issued. At that time, there were no material subsequent events.

-11-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITY(

To the Board of Directors
The Bridge House, Inc
Plymouth, New Hampshire

Our report on our audit of the basic
ended June 30, 2012 and our report

ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
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DRS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

financial statements of The Bridge House, Inc as of and for the year
dated February 28, 2013, which expressed an unmodified opinion on

those financial statements, appears on page one. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an

opinion on the financial statements

as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses for the year ended

June 30, 2012 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial

statements. Such information is the

responsibility of management and was derived from and relates

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this supplementary information for the year

ended June 30, 2012 is fairly stated
whole.

The schedule of functional expense
“auditors whose report dated July 2,

M'«—M;PV

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
February 28, 2013

in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a

5 of The Bridge House, Inc. as of June 30, 2011 was audited by other
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

-12-




THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Employee benefits, health insurz
Total payroll expenses

Professional fees

Essential services
Telephone and internet
Office supplies and postage
Depreciation

Rent

Utilities

Common area charges
Maintenance and repairs
Supplies

Vehicle expenses

Travel, training and conferences
Insurance

Criminal records search
Direct client services
Website & Marketing
Miscellaneous

Program Management

Services & General Fundraising Total
150,268 8,738 $161,212
13,584 790 14,573
7,981 464 8,562
171,833 9,992 184,347
6,590 3,920 10,510
1,584 - 1,584
1,393 - 1,393
4,749 - 4,749
26,367 2,930 29,297
1,500 - 1,500
11,556 1,284 12,840
3,618 402 4,020
9,042 1,005 10,047
4,917 4917
4,838 - 4,838
1,691 - 1,691
11,922 - 11,922
121 - 121
3,816 - 3,816
535 60 595
1,030 - 1,030
19,593 $289,217

TOTAL EXPENSES § 267,102

See Independcnt Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
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* THE BRIDGE HOUSE, INC
*  STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
i+ ForThe Year Ended Junc 30, 2011

Program Management
Services & General Fundraising Total

Payroll $ 128,906 5 2,789 $ 5,579 $137,274
Payroll taxes 15,755 332 498 16,585
Fringe benefits 134 34 - 168

Total payroll and benefits 144,795 3,155 6,077 154,027
Donated services 12,291 4278 1,484 18,053
Professional fees 1,569 - - 1,569
Telephone and internet 2,902 - - 2,902
Office expense 2,246 562 - 2,808
Depreciation 23,702 2,634 - 26,336
Rent 41,627 4,459 - 46,086
Vehicle expense 3,909 - - 3,909
Training 1,557 - - 1,557
Drug screenigs 323 - - 323
Criminal records search - 96 - - 926
‘Direct client services 4,585 - - 4,585
Fundraising - - 12,970 12,970
Website & Marketing - 438 438 876
Miscellancous 33 367 16 416

TOTAL EXPENSES § 239,635 § 15,893 $ 20,985  $276,513

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements
-14-




BRIDGE HOUSE SHELTER AND VETERANS ADVOCACY
260 HIGHLAND STREET PLYMOUTH, NH 03264
NAME POSITION ADDRESS PHONE E-MAIL
Jeff Brown President - " ( T j
Finance {
, { B
Vice President d 4 ' _
Brett Miller Development | —————)
Kathleen Secretary q ]
Norris Development —ﬂ
Alan Tripp Treasurer IL —
Finance
Governance & | 4 K —
Rick Cote Nominating 1
Amy Bames Development ] t A
3
]
* i
Steve Flynn Governance & ( ’ v I
Nominating 1 - —
Betty Ann Governance 1Y ——
Trought &Nominating :
Fiora Boyce Finance _‘ — —
oy, T

60

Dire&:tor: Catherine Bentwood, RN
3 536-7631 bridgehouseinc@gmail.com

House Manager: Holly Cormiea SN




Catherine Bentwood RN

Qualifications:
Leadership experience with three non-profit agencies
N H Registered Nurse License# 034589-21
Proven record of building partnerships, collaborative networking
Skilled in physical/mental health care and patient education
Employment:
Jan 2009 -  Executive Director Bridge House Homeless Shelter
present
1989-2008  Patient advocate/evaluator/minor-op assistant general surgery office
1979-1987  Owner/developer Bodyworks Plymouth, NH
Planning and|delivery full service health fitness for all ages
Researched/designed ongoing training for all instructors
Organized/designed all New England professional development workshop
1966-1973  St. Elizabeth’s Hospital, Boston, MA — ICU
NE Deaconess, Boston, MA -ICU
South Coast Hospital, Laguna Beach, CA- M&S
Registered Nurse, Roosevelt Hospital School of Nursing, NYC
AWARDS
2011 Granite State Award~ Co Recipient

2009 Chamber of Commerce/ James C Hobart Award

2001 Robert Craft/New England Patriots Community Champion Award — Co Recipient

Year Award — Co Recipient

1998 Rotary Citizen of the

Volunteerism and Related experience:

R
ration to provide housing for homeless veterans.
ty Family Fun Fair

BRIDGEHOUSE SHELTE

2010 - Initiated local collabo

2011 — 6™ Annual Communi

2011 — Third annual state wide “Directors’ Unplugged” brainstorm

2009 - Lead BH “Green” Initiative

2008 - Talked Nick Mathis into invigorating The Teaching Gardens, now a town wide sustainable
project

2008 - Bridge House Board of Directors since 2001




Objective

Experience

Education,
Training and
Accomplishments

Holly J. Cormiea

To pursue| a challenging career in a Social Service field.

2003-Present Bridge House Inc. Plymouth, NH
Manager (July 1, 2005)

= Particpant Care Worker- July 03-05

= Manage the daily operation of a 20 bed homeless shelter in Plymouth, NH.

= Work with area social services, charities, mental health, taw enforcement, landlords
and employers.

= Screen, admit and conduct intakes with incoming participants.

= Deal with all aspects of plant operation, purchasing and maintenance.

1998-200 Lakes Region Comm. Svcs. Councll Plymaouth, NH
Direct Support Provider

Develop day program activities.
Complete daily and monthly reports.
Participate in Individual Service Plans
Assist with Activities of Daily Living.
Consumer employment support.

Have worked in all areas LRCSC.

CPR
Medication administration under HeM-1201

Reality Therapy & Choice Theory

Defensive Driving Course

Mental Health Education classes :

HMIS- Homeless Management Information System

Outreach- with transitioned former participants & homeless community
Writing Progress Notes & Quarterly Reports

Liaison between Medical Professionals & Clients

Community Integration

Rescue & Foster Dogs from High kill shelters

Wrote 501 (c) (3) for Rescue

Wirite grants for Rescue

Referencels available upon request




10/31/13

Key Staff Salary Percentage of McKenney
Executive Director

Catherine Bentwood RN $36,000 0%

House Manager

Holly Cormiea $34,320 0%

Case Advocate

30-hour position TBA $31,200 0%




